

Gplus Adapter 7.5

Campaign Synchronization for SAP

Deployment Guide



The information contained herein is proprietary and confidential and cannot be disclosed or duplicated without the prior written consent of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc.

Copyright © 2008 Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All rights reserved.

About Genesys

Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc., a subsidiary of Alcatel-Lucent, is 100% focused on software for call centers. Genesys recognizes that better interactions drive better business and build company reputations. Customer service solutions from Genesys deliver on this promise for Global 2000 enterprises, government organizations, and telecommunications service providers across 80 countries, directing more than 100 million customer interactions every day. Sophisticated routing and reporting across voice, e-mail, and Web channels ensure that customers are quickly connected to the best available resource—the first time. Genesys offers solutions for customer service, help desks, order desks, collections, outbound telesales and service, and workforce management. Visit www.genesyslab.com for more information.

Each product has its own documentation for online viewing at the Genesys Technical Support website or on the Documentation Library DVD, which is available from Genesys upon request. For more information, contact your sales representative.

Notice

Although reasonable effort is made to ensure that the information in this document is complete and accurate at the time of release, Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc., cannot assume responsibility for any existing errors. Changes and/or corrections to the information contained in this document may be incorporated in future versions.

Your Responsibility for Your System's Security

You are responsible for the security of your system. Product administration to prevent unauthorized use is your responsibility. Your system administrator should read all documents provided with this product to fully understand the features available that reduce your risk of incurring charges for unlicensed use of Genesys products.

Trademarks

Genesys, the Genesys logo, and T-Server are registered trademarks of Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. All other trademarks and trade names referred to in this document are the property of other companies. The Crystal monospace font is used by permission of Software Renovation Corporation, www. SoftwareRenovation.com.

Technical Support from VARs

If you have purchased support from a value-added reseller (VAR), please contact the VAR for technical support.

Technical Support from Genesys

If you have purchased support directly from Genesys, please contact Genesys Technical Support at the following regional numbers:

Region	Telephone	E-Mail
North and Latin America	+888-369-5555 or +506-674-6767	support@genesyslab.com
Europe, Middle East, and Africa	+44-(0)-118-974-7002	support@genesyslab.co.uk
Asia Pacific	+61-7-3368-6868	support@genesyslab.com.au
Japan	+81-3-6361-8950	support@genesyslab.co.jp

Prior to contacting technical support, please refer to the *Genesys Technical Support Guide* for complete contact information and procedures.

Ordering and Licensing Information

Complete information on ordering and licensing Genesys products can be found in the Genesys 7 Licensing Guide.

Released by

Genesys Telecommunications Laboratories, Inc. <u>www.genesyslab.com</u> **Document Version:** 75gp_dep_sap-campsynch_03-2008_v7.5.001.02



Table of Contents

Preface		7
	New in Release 7.5	8
	Intended Audience	9
	Chapter Summaries	9
	Document Conventions	
	Related Resources	
	Genesys Resources	12
	SAP Resources	12
	Making Comments on This Document	13
Chapter 1	About the Adapter	15
	Feature Overview	
	Key Features	
	External Organizations and Administrators	
	Architectural Overview	17
Chapter 2	System Requirements	19
	Compatibility Overview	
	Software Requirements	
	Genesys Applications	20
	SAP Applications	
	Relational Database Management System (RDBMS)	21
	Hardware Requirements	21
Chapter 3	Migration	23
	Overview of Migration Steps	
	Deactivating SAP Campaigns	
	Deleting Calling List and Table Access Objects from Genesys Configuration DB	
	Uninstalling the 6.5 Gplus Outbound Adapter for SAP	
	Upgrading to Genesys Framework 7.5	
	Upgrading to Genesys Pranework 7.5 Upgrading to Genesys Outbound Contact 7.5	
	Importing the 7.5 Adapter Component Templates	

	Creating the 7.5 Adapter Component Applications	25
	Configuring the 7.5 Adapter Components	
	Installing the 7.5 Adapter Components	
	Starting the Adapter Components	
	Activating the SAP Calling Lists	
Chapter 4	Configuring Campaign Synchronization Server	27
	Preliminary Procedures	27
	Importing the Application Template	27
	Creating and Configuring the Application	
	Creating the Application Object	
	Configuring the General Tab	29
	Configuring the Tenants Tab	30
	Configuring the Server Info Tab	30
	Configuring the Start Info Tab	30
	Configuring the Connections Tab	31
	Configuring the Options Tab	
	Completing the Initial Application Setup	
	Configuring Security Settings	
	Creating a New Person	36
	Adding a Person to the Super Administrators Access Group	37
	Associating a Person's Account with the Application	37
	Creating the List Import Format	37
	Creating Field Objects	
	Creating the Format Object	39
	Copying the Format Object	39
Chapter 5	Installing Campaign Synchronization Server	41
	Installing the CSS	41
	Running the Setup	41
	Starting the Installation Manually	42
	Installation Results	43
	Uninstalling the CSS	43
Chapter 6	Configuring the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP	45
	Preliminary Procedures	45
	Importing the Application Template	45
	Creating and Configuring the Application	46
	Creating the Application Object	
	Configuring the General Tab	47
	Configuring the Server Info Tab	48

	Configuring the Start Info Tab	49
	Configuring the Connections Tab	50
	Configuring the Options Tab	51
	Completing the Initial Application Setup	55
	Configuring and Creating the AGS Internal Table	55
	Configuring the Database	55
	Uninstalling the AGS Internal Table	56
	Configuring the SAPphone Server in SAP	56
	Component Enabling Examples	56
Chapter 7	Installing Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP	61
	Installing the AGS	61
	Running the Setup	
	Starting the Installation Manually	62
	Installation Results	63
	Uninstalling the AGS	63
Chapter 8	Starting the Adapter Components	65
	Launching the Adapter Components from the Start Menu	
	Starting the Adapter Components Using the Solution Control Inter	
	Starting the Adapter Components as a Windows Service	
Chapter 9	Use-Case Scenarios	71
•	Testing the Adapter-SAPphone Connection	71
	Setting Up and Assigning the Call List	
	Running Campaign Record Deletion	
	Running Campaign Record Deletion	
Index		81

Table of Contents



Preface

Welcome to the Gplus Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP Deployment Guide. This document lists system requirements, and describes how to install and configure the Gplus Adapter Campaign Synchronization for SAP (the Adapter).

Note: For versions of this document created for other releases of this product, please visit the Genesys Technical Support website, or request the Documentation Library CD, which you can order by e-mail from Genesys Order Management at <u>orderman@genesys1ab.com</u>.

This preface provides an overview of this document, identifies the primary audience, introduces document conventions, and lists related reference information. It contains the following sections:

- New in Release 7.5, page 8
- Intended Audience, page 9
- Chapter Summaries, page 9
- Document Conventions, page 10
- Related Resources, page 12
- Making Comments on This Document, page 13

The Adapter extends the SAP product suite with enhanced telesales and telemarketing campaign functionality. For example, it enables dynamic updating to active outbound campaigns and reporting on post-campaign dialing results.

New in Release 7.5

The *Gplus* Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP is the replacement product for the 6.5 *Gplus* Outbound Adapter for SAP. The 7.5 Adapter has the following capabilities:

Functional

• Calling List creation and update

The Adapter enables the transfer of outbound calling list data between SAP and Genesys.

• Call List updates triggered by an inbound call

The Adapter allows for Call Lists to be updated as a result of an inbound call. For example, if a customer calls (even while they are an outbound campaign target) the Call List data will be updated with the caller's latest information.

• Campaign record deletion

The Adapter allows for the programmatic deletion of Outbound Campaign Records between SAP and Genesys.

• Campaign results query

The Adapter exposes campaign results, which can be programmatically queried from SAP to Genesys.

Platform

• Operating system support

The Adapter supports Microsoft Windows Server 2000 and 2003.

• Database support

The Adapter supports MS SQL Server 2000, 2005; and, Oracle 9.2, 10g.

Usability

- Multi-instance support Multiple- instances of the Adapter can operate on the same or different computer.
- Run as Windows Service

The Adapter can now be operated as a MS Windows Service.

High Availability

• Genesys Configuration Server Primary (Backup) support

The Adapter supports Primary (Backup) mode of Configuration Server for access to the configuration data.

Security

• Transport layer security

The Adapter supports a secure connection with Genesys Configuration Server, and DB Server.

Intended Audience

This document is intended primarily for system administrators or other individuals who install, configure, and maintain the Adapter. The guide assumes that you have a basic understanding of:

- Computer-telephony integration (CTI) concepts, processes, terminology, and applications.
- Network design and operation.
- Your own network configurations.

You should also be familiar with:

Genesys Framework architecture and functions

Chapter Summaries

In addition to this preface, this Deployment Guide contains the following chapters:

- Chapter 1, "About the Adapter," on page 15, introduces the concepts, terminology, key features, and architecture for the Adapter.
- Chapter 2, "System Requirements," on page 19, describes the minimum hardware and software requirements for installing and using the Adapter.
- Chapter 3, "Migration," on page 23, describes the requirements and process for migrating from the 6.5 G*plus* Outbound Adapter for SAP to G*plus* Adapter Campaign Synchronization for SAP 7.5.
- Chapter 4, "Configuring Campaign Synchronization Server," on page 27, describes configuration tasks for the Adapter's Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS) component.
- Chapter 5, "Installing Campaign Synchronization Server," on page 41, describes installation tasks for the Adapter's Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS) component.
- Chapter 6, "Configuring the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP," on page 45, describes configuration tasks for the Adapter's Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP (AGS) component.
- Chapter 7, "Installing Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP," on page 61, describes installation tasks for the Adapter's Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP (AGS) component.

- Chapter 8, "Starting the Adapter Components," on page 65, describes how to start the Adapter's CSS and AGS components.
- Chapter 9, "Use-Case Scenarios," on page 71, provides several use-case scenarios about using the Adapter.

Document Conventions

This document uses certain stylistic and typographical conventions introduced here—that serve as shorthands for particular kinds of information.

Document Version Number

A version number appears at the bottom of the inside front cover of this document. Version numbers change as new information is added to this document. Here is a sample version number:

75gp_dep_sap-campsynch_03-2007_v7.5.001.00

You will need this number when you are talking with Genesys Technical Support about this product.

Type Styles

Italic

In this document, italic is used for emphasis, for documents' titles, for definitions of (or first references to) unfamiliar terms, and for mathematical variables.

- **Examples:** Please consult the *Genesys 7 Migration Guide* for more information.
 - *A customary and usual practice* is one that is widely accepted and used within a particular industry or profession.
 - Do *not* use this value for this option.
 - The formula, x + 1 = 7 where x stands for . . .

Monospace Font

A monospace font, which looks like tel etype or typewriter text, is used for all programming identifiers and GUI elements.

This convention includes the *names* of directories, files, folders, configuration objects, paths, scripts, dialog boxes, options, fields, text and list boxes, operational modes, all buttons (including radio buttons), check boxes,

commands, tabs, CTI events, and error messages; the values of options; logical arguments and command syntax; and code samples.

- **Examples:** Select the Show variables on screen check box.
 - Click the Summation button.
 - In the Properties dialog box, enter the value for the host server in your environment.
 - In the Operand text box, enter your formula.
 - Click OK to exit the Properties dialog box.
 - The following table presents the complete set of error messages T-Server distributes in EventError events.
 - If you select true for the inbound-bsns-calls option, all established inbound calls on a local agent are considered business calls.

Monospace is also used for any text that users must manually enter during a configuration or installation procedure, or on a command line:

Example: • Enter exit on the command line.

Screen Captures Used in This Document

Screen captures from the product GUI (graphical user interface), as used in this document, may sometimes contain a minor spelling, capitalization, or grammatical error. The text accompanying and explaining the screen captures corrects such errors *except* when such a correction would prevent you from installing, configuring, or successfully using the product. For example, if the name of an option contains a usage error, the name would be presented exactly as it appears in the product GUI; the error would not be corrected in any accompanying text.

Square Brackets

Square brackets indicate that a particular parameter or value is optional within a logical argument, a command, or some programming syntax. That is, the parameter's or value's presence is not required to resolve the argument, command, or block of code. The user decides whether to include this optional information. Here is a sample:

```
smcp_server -host [/flags]
```

Angle Brackets

Angle brackets indicate a placeholder for a value that the user must specify. This might be a DN or port number specific to your enterprise. Here is a sample:

```
smcp_server -host <confighost>
```

Related Resources

The following Genesys and SAP resources are required to install and configure the Adapter.

Genesys Resources

Consult the following additional Genesys resources as necessary:

- Genesys Guides including:
 - Genesys 7.5 Security Deployment Guide
 - Framework 7.5 Deployment Guide
 - Outbound Contact 7.5 Deployment Guide
 - Outbound Contact 7.5 Reference Manual
- The *Genesys Technical Publications Glossary*, which is included on the Genesys Documentation Library CD. This document provides a comprehensive list of the Genesys and CTI terminology and acronyms used in this document.
- The *Genesys 7 Migration Guide*, also on the Genesys Documentation Library CD, which provides a documented migration strategy from Genesys product releases 5.1 and later to all Genesys 7.x releases. Contact Genesys Technical Support for additional information.
- The Release Notes and Product Advisories for this product, which are available on the Genesys Technical Support website at http://genesyslab.com/support.

Information on supported hardware and third-party software is available on the Genesys Technical Support website in the following documents:

- Genesys Supported Operating Systems and Databases
- Genesys Supported Media Interfaces

Genesys product documentation is available on the:

- Genesys Technical Support website at <u>http://genesyslab.com/support</u>.
- Genesys Documentation Library CD, which you can order by e-mail from Genesys Order Management at <u>orderman@genesys1 ab. com</u>.

SAP Resources

To access related SAPphone specification documents contact your SAP administrator.

Making Comments on This Document

If you especially like or dislike anything about this document, please feel free to e-mail your comments to <u>Techpubs.webadmin@genesyslab.com</u>.

You can comment on what you regard as specific errors or omissions, and on the accuracy, organization, subject matter, or completeness of this document. Please limit your comments to the information in this document only and to the way in which the information is presented. Speak to Genesys Technical Support if you have suggestions about the product itself.

When you send us comments, you grant Genesys a nonexclusive right to use or distribute your comments in any way it believes appropriate, without incurring any obligation to you.





Chapter

1

About the Adapter

The *Gplus* Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP is the replacement product for the 6.5 *Gplus* Outbound Adapter for SAP. It is intended for customers running SAP CRM 3.0 (or later), and specifically for SAP systems that support outbound campaign functionality, including:

- Interaction Center Call List Management Application (for supervisors)
- Interaction Center WinClient
- Interaction Center WebClient

This chapter provides an overview of the Adapter, its features, and its architecture. This chapter contains the following sections:

- Feature Overview, page 15
- Architectural Overview, page 17

Feature Overview

The Adapter interfaces with the Genesys Outbound Contact Solution (OCS) and SAP CRM. It consists of two components:

- Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP (AGS)
- Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS)

The Adapter complements the SAP product line by enabling:

- Automatic dialing capability
- Inbound and outbound interactions for customer agents
- Statistical campaign capability such as Progressive and Predictive, which are popular among large enterprises such as typical SAP customers.
- External organizations and administrators connectivity.

Key Features

The Adapter enables the following key features:

- Integration between Genesys and SAP to enable campaign synchronization functionality. Specifically, the Adapter can be configured to:
 - Enable Calling List creation and updating so that the SAP system can submit or modify outbound campaigns in OCS.
 - Enable Call List updating during an inbound call (where the request for the update is initiated by the Agent that received the inbound call).
 - Provide offline and online campaign record deletion. so that the SAP system can delete campaign records in OCS.
 - Provide querying of campaign results so that the SAP System can query the results and statistics of campaigns in OCS.
- Adapter components (CSS and AGS) configuration using the Genesys Configuration Layer, to enable easy configuration for system administrators.
- Adapter components (CSS and AGS) administration from the Genesys Management Layer, to enable remote starting, stopping, status viewing, and centralized logging.

External Organizations and Administrators

The Adapter supports a one-to-many relationship between Genesys and external systems. For example, one instance of Genesys can be configured to work with either:

- Many SAP Systems
- One SAP System that has many clients.

This functionality is configured in the CSS and AGS components. For more information about how to configure the CSS component, see the:

- "Tenants Section" on page 36
- "CallingListFolders Section" on page 32
- "DatabaseAccessPoints Section" on page 34
- "TableAccessFolders Section" on page 35 and see AGS options

For more information about how to configure the AGS component, see the CampSync Section:

- Organi zati on option on page 54
- Admin option on page 54

Architectural Overview

Genesys and SAP are integrated through the following Adapter components:

- Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS)
- Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP (AGS), as shown in Figure 1



Figure 1: Architectural Overview

The Adapter components provide the following functionality:

- Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP implements the automated dialing behavior of SAPphone RFC interface (across SPS_PDLISTTRANSFER, SPS_STATCAMPAING, and SPS_DELETE_PDCALL SAP RFC functions).
- Campaign Synchronization Server provides campaign synchronization functionality for OCS.

The Adapter interacts with Genesys Configuration Layer, Management Layer, and Genesys Database Server using Genesys libraries and APIs.

The Adapter components maintain the following connections:

- AGS and CSS maintain a connection to the Configuration Layer and the Management Layer.
- AGS maintain a connection to CSS (to enable transfer of SAP requests).

- AGS maintain a connection to the SAP server (to enable processing of automated dialing RFC requests).
- CSS connects to Genesys Outbound Contact Server and T-Server.
- AGS and CSS maintain a connection to DB Server (after the first request from the SAP System).



Chapter



System Requirements

This chapter outlines the minimum software and hardware requirements for the G*plus* Adapter Campaign Synchronization for SAP. It contains the following sections:

- Compatibility Overview, page 19
- Software Requirements, page 20
- Hardware Requirements, page 21

Compatibility Overview

The Adapter requires the following:

- Operating system
- Genesys Framework
- Relationship Database Management System (RDBMS)
- SAP System that supports the Remote Function Calls (RFC) protocol and SAPphone interface.

Information on supported hardware and third-party software is available on the Genesys Technical Support website in the following documents:

- Genesys Supported Operating Systems and Databases
- Genesys Supported Media Interfaces

Software Requirements

You will need the following software to support the Adapter:

- Genesys Framework 7.5
- SAP CRM Application Server and SAP GUI client
- An operating system, see the *Genesys 7 Supported Operating Systems and Databases Reference Manual* for details.

Genesys Applications

The following Genesys software is required:

- Genesys Framework 7.5, including:
 - Configuration Layer (Configuration Server, Configuration Manager, and so on)
 - Management Layer (LCA, Message Server, Solution Control Server/Interface, and so on)
 - Genesys Outbound Contact Solution
- **Note:** For best performance, install the Genesys applications on different machines. For installation information, refer to the documentation for the specific application.

SAP Applications

You will need to complete the setup described in the following SAP documentation to deploy and use the Adapter:

- SAP Note 413708.
- SAP Note 1023194
- SAPphone Documentation

SAP Note 413708

Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP uses Librfc32. dll (part of the SAP RFC library). Refer to SAP Note 413708 for details on how to deploy the SAP RFC SDK.

Note: This configuration should be performed by a SAP Administrator.

SAP Note 1023194

If you are using SAP CRM 4.0 there is a code adjustment required to the SAP System. Refer to SAP Note 1023194 for details.

Note: This configuration should be performed by a SAP Administrator.

SAPphone Documentation

The Adapter communicates with the SAP system by means of the SAPphone interface. See the SAPphone documentation for SAPphone requirements. This version of the Adapter implements SAPphone Interface version 5.11.

Relational Database Management System (RDBMS)

You will need a Relational Database Management System to deploy and use the Adapter. See, the *Genesys 7 Supported Operating Systems and Databases Reference Manual* for details.

Hardware Requirements

You need the following hardware to support the Adapter (CSS and AGS):

- Pentium III 700 Mhz CPU or faster
- 256 MB of RAM
- 64 MB of disk space
- 800×600 256-color monitor or higher
- Network adapter and network connection

These are minimum hardware requirements. For large call centers and/or large call volumes, more hardware resources (especially RAM and CPU) will be required.





Chapter



Migration

This chapter provides a summary of the steps to migrate from the 6.5 G*plus* Outbound Adapter for SAP to the G*plus* Adapter Campaign Synchronization for SAP 7.5. It contains the following sections:

- Overview of Migration Steps, page 23
- Deactivating SAP Campaigns, page 24
- Deleting Calling List and Table Access Objects from Genesys Configuration DB, page 24
- Uninstalling the 6.5 Gplus Outbound Adapter for SAP, page 24
- Upgrading to Genesys Framework 7.5, page 25
- Upgrading to Genesys Outbound Contact 7.5, page 25
- Importing the 7.5 Adapter Component Templates, page 25
- Creating the 7.5 Adapter Component Applications, page 25
- Configuring the 7.5 Adapter Components, page 26
- Installing the 7.5 Adapter Components, page 26
- Starting the Adapter Components, page 26
- Activating the SAP Calling Lists, page 26

Overview of Migration Steps

Migration from the 6.5 Adapter to the 7.5 Adapter requires the following steps:

- 1. Deactivating SAP Campaigns
- **2.** Deleting Calling List and Table Access Objects from Genesys Configuration DB
- 3. Uninstalling the 6.5 Gplus Outbound Adapter for SAP
- 4. Upgrading to Genesys Framework 7.5
- 5. Upgrading to Genesys Outbound Contact 7.5
- 6. Importing the 7.5 Adapter Component Templates

- 7. Creating the 7.5 Adapter Component Applications
- 8. Configuring the 7.5 Adapter Components
- **9.** Installing the 7.5 Adapter Components
- 10. Starting the Adapter Components
- **11.** Activating the SAP Calling Lists

Deactivating SAP Campaigns

See Chapter 9, "Use-Case Scenarios," on page 71 for details.

Deleting Calling List and Table Access Objects from Genesys Configuration DB

Using Genesys Configuration Manager, delete all Calling List and Table Access objects that were created by the 6.5 Adapter.

Uninstalling the 6.5 G*plus* Outbound Adapter for SAP

You can uninstall the 6.5 Adapter using the Microsoft Windows Add/Remove Programs feature.

To completely uninstall the 6.5 Adapter:

- From the Windows main taskbar, select Start > Settings > Control Panel > Add/Remove Programs.
- 2. Select Genesys Outbound Adapter for SAP as the component to remove.
- **3.** Follow the instructions on screen, and confirm that you want to remove the Adapter components.

Add/Remove Programs removes the Adapter components.

- **4.** After you see the message that says that the uninstall has been completed, follow the instructions on screen to conclude the uninstall process.
- **Note:** If the Adapter's application folder contains files that were installed after the original install process, these files will not be deleted by the uninstall process. You must remove these files manually.

Upgrading to Genesys Framework 7.5

See the Genesys 7 Migration Guide for details.

Upgrading to Genesys Outbound Contact 7.5

See the Genesys 7 Migration Guide for details.

Importing the 7.5 Adapter Component Templates

Both the Adapter component, Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS), and the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP (AGS) templates must be imported.

Importing the CSS Template

See "Importing the Application Template" on page 27 for details

Importing the AGS Template

See "Importing the Application Template" on page 45 for details.

Creating the 7.5 Adapter Component Applications

Both the Adapter component, Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS), and the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP (AGS) application objects must be created.

Creating the CSS Application

See "Creating and Configuring the Application" on page 28 for details.

Creating the AGS Application

See "Creating the Application Object" on page 46 for details.

Configuring the 7.5 Adapter Components

Both the Adapter component, Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS), and the Autodialing Gateway Server (AGS) objects must be configured.

Configuring the CSS Object

See "Preliminary Procedures" on page 27 for details.

Configuring the AGS Object

See "Configuring the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP" on page 45 for details.

Installing the 7.5 Adapter Components

Both the Adapter component, Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS) and the Auto-dialing Gateway Server (AGS), objects must be installed.

Installing the CSS Object

See "Installing Campaign Synchronization Server" on page 41 for details.

Installing AGS Object

See "Installing Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP" on page 61 for details.

Starting the Adapter Components

See Chapter 8, "Starting the Adapter Components," on page 65 for details.

Activating the SAP Calling Lists

See Chapter 9, "Use-Case Scenarios," on page 71 for details.



Chapter



Configuring Campaign Synchronization Server

This chapter describes how to configure the Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS). It includes the following sections:

- Preliminary Procedures, page 27
- Importing the Application Template, page 27
- Creating and Configuring the Application, page 28
- Configuring Security Settings, page 36
- Creating the List Import Format, page 37

Preliminary Procedures

Before you configure CSS, you must configure the Genesys Framework applications. The required Genesys Framework applications are:

- Configuration Database
- Configuration Server
- Configuration Manager

Importing the Application Template

Before you install CSS, you must import the Application Template into Genesys Configuration Manager, and also create and configure an Application object based on this template.

Note: As a Configuration Manager user, you should have sufficient privileges to make changes to Configuration Layer objects.

To import the CSS Application Template:

- 1. Open Configuration Manager, log in, and then select Environment > Application Templates.
- 2. Right-click Application Templates.
- 3. From the shortcut menu that appears, select Import Application Template.
- 4. In the Open dialog box, navigate to the file for the CSS Application Template. Its location on your hard drive or installation CD may vary. The file name is: Campai gn_Synchroni zati on_Server_750. apd.
- 5. Select this file and click Open. The Properties dialog box for the Application Template object appears.
- **6.** (Optional) Edit the Application Template name.
- 7. In the Properties dialog box, click OK.

The Application Template object has been imported to Genesys Configuration Layer. Next, you will create the Configuration Layer Application object for the Campaign Synchronization Server.

Creating and Configuring the Application

After you have imported the template as described in the previous section, create and configure the new Primary and Warm Standby (optional) Application object(s). This involves the following tasks:

- 1. Creating the Application object
- 2. Configuring the General tab
- **3.** Configuring the Tenants tab (in a multi-tenant environment)
- 4. Configuring the Server Info tab
- 5. Configuring the Start Info tab
- 6. Configuring the Connections tab
- 7. Configuring the Options tab
- 8. Completing the initial setup of the Application object
- 9. Configuring the Securi ty tab
- **10.** Creating the List Import Format object

Creating the Application Object

To create the properties for the new Application object, use Configuration Manager's Properties dialog box.

1. In Configuration Manager, select Environment > Appl i cations.

- **2.** Right-click either the Appl i cations folder or the subfolder where you want to create your application.
- **3.** From the popup menu that appears, select New > Appl i cation.
- 4. In the Open dialog box, locate the template you just imported, and then double-click it.
- 5. Click OK.

Configuration Manager opens the Properties dialog box for the new Application object as shown in Figure 2.

New Campaign_Sy	nchron			ver_7	50_0)2 [gplus
Connections General T			otions Server	1.4.	1	Annex
	enants Campai					Start Info er_75
					atior	J 📓
Type. ⊻ersion:	Genesy 7.5.0	is Gen	eric per	ver		<u>_</u>
	<mark>⊯</mark> [s A) ⊵ <u>S</u> tat			ver		
в ок	Can	icel	1 Ma	ake Ne	w	Help

Figure 2: View of General Tab in Multi-Tenant Environment

Configuring the General Tab

To configure general information about the application, use the General tab of the Properti es dialog box.

- 1. Click the General tab of the Properties dialog box.
- 2. (Optional) In the Name box, enter a name for the Application object.

Note: Next, if you are working in a multi-tenant environment, go to the Tenants tab; otherwise, go to the Server Info tab.

Configuring the Tenants Tab

If you are installing the Adapter in a multi-tenant environment, the Tenants tab is available in Configuration Manager. CSS works only with Tenants that are selected here.

Configuring the Server Info Tab

To configure the server information for the application, use the Server Info tab of the Properties dialog box.

- 1. Click the Server Info tab.
- 2. Select the Host that this instance of CSS is to run on.
- 3. Set the Communication Port field to any unused port (on this host).

Note: This option determines the HTTP port number used by CSS to receive HTTP packets from AGS. You will use the value that you enter for this option when you configure AGS.

Configuring the Start Info Tab

To configure the startup information for the application, use the Start Info tab of the Properties dialog box.

- 1. Click the Start Info tab.
- 2. In the Working Directory field, enter the full name of the Component installation directory on the host you specified on the Server Info tab. The value you enter in this field will be used as the default destination folder during installation.
- **3.** In the Command Line field, enter a period (.) to enable Setup to populate this field during installation.
- **4.** In the Command Line Arguments field, enter a period (.) to enable Setup to populate this field during installation.

Note: The values you enter in the Command Line and Command Line Arguments fields will be overwritten during installation; however, data must be present in these fields during the configuration process.

5. Leave the default values for the remaining fields.

Configuring the Connections Tab

On the Connections tab, add the applications to which this application connects.

- 1. Click the Connections tab.
- 2. Click Add to add a connection to the following Genesys servers:
 - Database Access Point—This option is used to provide access to the Calling List tables in the Outbound Contact database.
 - (Optional)Outbound Contact Server—This option is required if you plan the use the Cancel Record option.
 - (Optional) T-Server—This option is required if you plan the use the Cancel Record option. It is used by the Outbound Contact Server to communicate through the communication DN.
 - (Optional) Message Server—This option is required if you plan to use the Management Layer for alarm-signaling and centralized-logging capabilities.
 - (Optional) Configuration Server—This option is required if you plan to configure a connection to this server.
- **3.** (Optional) Adjust the Advanced Disconnect Detection Protocol (ADDP) between CSS and Genesys servers components.

Configuring the Options Tab

This section describes the configuration options for CSS. You must configure all of the following sections before starting the Adapter:

- CallingListFolders
- CustomStatistics
- DatabaseAccessPoints
- Genesys
- Log
- TableAccessFolders
- Tenants

To set various configuration options for the application, use the Options tab of the Properties dialog box. You will configure options in these sections starting with the CallingListFolders section. Double-click a section to access its options.

Table 1 lists and describes the configuration options on the 0ptions tab. These options are grouped according to the section of the tab in which they appear. A *Yes* in the "Must Restart?" column indicates that you must restart the Adapter after changing the option. A *Yes* in the "Must Set?" column indicates an option that you *must* configure in order for the Adapter to function properly. You can

accept the default values for all other configuration options or adjust them later, according to your needs.

Note: All option names and values are case-sensitive, so be sure to enter them exactly as shown in Table 1.

Table 1: Gplus Adapter Configuration Options

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?				
	CallingListFolders Section							
SAP subsystem to a coption name is the extra value is the name of the Note: Prior to importin	 Options in this section define the mapping of SAP subsystems to Genesys Calling Lists folders. To map a SAP subsystem to a Genesys Calling Lists folder, create a new option within this section, where the option name is the external <adminloginname> which corresponds to SAP subsystem and the option value is the name of the existing Calling Lists folders in Genesys CLE. (see "External Organizations and Administrators" on page 16).</adminloginname> Note: Prior to importing information from SAP, you must use Genesys Configuration Manager to create the Configuration Manager folders referenced in this section. 							
<admi nlogi="" nname=""></admi>	Default Value: None Valid Values: <callinglists folder=""> Where, <callinglists folder=""> is the name of an existing Calling Lists folder in Genesys CLE.</callinglists></callinglists>	Each option in this section controls the mapping of an Admi nLogi nName used in the AGS XML- messages to a Configuration Manager folder, where the CSS will create corresponding configuration objects (Calling List objects) when importing from SAP.	No	Yes Note: One option is required.				
	CustomSta	tistics Section						
Note: The default of	statistic to SAF	ound Contact Format filed that server by requests. P backward synchronization, a Genesys Format Configuration	nd they must	t not be				
(CLE) object used in CSS.								
agent_i d	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <any integer="" or<br="" valid="">string></any>	This option corresponds to the agent_i d that is a Format Field object in the Genesys CLE. For more information, see the <i>Outbound Contact 7.5</i> <i>Deployment Guide</i> .	N/A	No, this option must not be modified.				

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?
campaign_id	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <any integer="" or<br="" valid="">string></any>	This option corresponds to the campai gn_i d that is a Format Field object in the Genesys CLE. For more information, see the <i>Outbound Contact 7.5</i> <i>Deployment Guide</i> .	N/A	No, this option must not be modified.
contact_info	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <any integer="" or<br="" valid="">string></any>	This option corresponds to the contact_i nfo that is a Format Field object in the Genesys CLE. For more information, see the Outbound Contact 7.5 Deployment Guide.	N/A	No, this option must not be modified.
record_status	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <any integer="" or<br="" valid="">string></any>	This option corresponds to the record_status that is a Format Field object in the Genesys CLE. For more information, see the <i>Outbound Contact 7.5</i> <i>Deployment Guide</i> .	N/A	No, this option must not be modified.

Table 1: Gplus Adapter Configuration Options (Continued)

Table 1: Gplus Adapter Configuration Options (Continued)

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?
map a SAP subsystem where the option name the option value is informat Note: Prior to importin	define the mapping of SA n to a Genesys Database A e is the external <adminlo the name of the existing I tion, see "External Organiz g information from SAP, y</adminlo 	essPoints Section P subsystems to Genesys Data ccess Points, create a new optio oginName> which corresponds Database Access Point in Genes cations and Administrators" on ou must use Genesys Configur e Access Points referenced in th	on within thi to SAP subs sys CLE. For page 16. ation Manag	s section, ystem and more
<admi nlogi="" nname=""></admi>	Default Value: None Valid Values: <dataaccesspoint> Where, <dataaccesspoint> is the name of the existing Database Access Point from Genesys CLE.</dataaccesspoint></dataaccesspoint>	The options in this section control mapping of the <adminloginname> used in the AGS XML- messages to a Configuration Manager Database Access Point. The Database Access Point defines the OCS database where the CSS will create corresponding Calling List tables when importing data from SAP.</adminloginname>	No	Note: One option is required.
		ys Section as miscellaneous options.		
communicationDN	Default Value: None Valid Values: <communi cat="" i="" ondn=""> Where, <communi cat="" i="" ondn=""> is the name of the existing Communication DN object from Genesys Configuration Layer Environment (CLE) object.</communi></communi>	This option determines the name of the communication DN that the CancelRecord functionality will use for interactions with the Outbound Contact Server. Note: This option must be defined, if the sendCancel Record option is set to true.	Yes	Yes, if you want to use the Cancel- Record function- ality, and no otherwise (Y/N).
Cancel RecordTimeout	Default Value: 5000ms Valid Values: <a positive<br="" valid="">integer>	This option sets the time interval that CSS will wait for a Cancel Record response from Outbound Contact Server (OCS).	Yes	Y/N

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?
format	Default Value: Gpl usCampSynch Valid Values: <formatname> Where, <formatname> is the name of the existing Format object from Genesys CLE</formatname></formatname>	This option determines the name of a list import Format object in the Genesys CLE. The Format object is used by the CSS to create Genesys calling list tables.	Yes	Yes
sendCancel Record	Default Value: fal se Valid Values: true, fal se	This option manages the availability of the Cancel Record functionality. If the option is true, the CancelRecord functionality is enabled. If the option is false, the CancelRecord functionality is disabled.	Yes	Y/N

Table 1: Gplus Adapter Configuration Options (Continued)

Log Section

This section supports the unified set of log options (common log options) to enable precise configuration of the log file output. For a complete list of unified log options and their descriptions, see the "Common Log Options" chapter of the *Framework 7 Configuration Options Reference Manual*. If you do not specify any log options, the default values apply.

TableAccessFolders Section

Options in this section define the mapping of SAP subsystems to Genesys Table Access folders. To map a SAP subsystem to a Genesys Table Access folder, create a new option within this section, where the option name is the external <AdminLoginName> which corresponds to SAP subsystem and the option value is the name of the existing Table Access folders in Genesys CLE.

Note: Prior to importing information from SAP, you must use Genesys Configuration Manager to create the Configuration Manager folders referenced in this section.

<admi nlogi="" nname=""></admi>	Default Value: None Valid Values: <tabl dername="" eaccessfol=""> Where, <tabl dername="" eaccessfol=""> is the name of the existing Genesys Table Access folder name.</tabl></tabl>	Each option in this section controls the mapping of an Admi nLogi nName used in the AGS XML- messages to a Configuration Manager folder, where the CSS will create corresponding configuration objects (Table Access objects) when importing from SAP.	No	Yes Note: One option is required.

Table 1: Gplus Adapter Configuration Options (Continued)

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?		
Tenants Section Options in this section define the mapping of SAP Organizations to Genesys Tenants. To map a SAP Organization to a Genesys Tenant, create a new option within this section, where the option name is the name of the Genesys Tenant and the option value is the name of the SAP Organization defined in AGS.						
<tenantname> from Genesys CLE.</tenantname>	Default Value: None Valid Values: The SAP Organization name defined in the corresponding AGS.	This option maps SAP Organizations to Genesys Tenants.	No	Yes Note: One option is required.		

Completing the Initial Application Setup

Once the values in the previous subsections have been entered, click OK to complete the application setup.

Configuring Security Settings

Security settings must be configured for the Campaign Synchronization Server so that CSS can make changes to Genesys Configuration Layer objects. Follow the procedures outlined in the following sections to configure the security settings for the Application object you created in "Creating and Configuring the Application" on page 28.

Creating a New Person

In Configuration Manager:

- 1. If you are working in a multi-tenant environment, right-click the Persons folder under Envi ronment. If you are working in a single-tenant environment, right-click the Persons folder under Resources.
- 2. Select New > Person. The new Person window appears.
- 3. Select the General tab
 - Employee ID: CSS_Admin_use
 - User Name: CSS_Admin_user
 - Is Agent: Clear
- **4.** Click 0K.
Adding a Person to the Super Administrators Access Group

In Configuration Manager, to display the existing Access Groups:

- 1. Click the Access Groups folder under Environment if you are working in a multi-tenant environment or under Resources if you are working in a single-tenant environment.
- 2. Double-click Super Administrators Access Group to display its properties.
- 3. Click the Add button to add the Person you just created to the Users list.
- **4.** Click 0K.

Associating a Person's Account with the Application

In Configuration Manager, under Environment:

- 1. Click the Applications folder to display existing Applications.
- **2.** Double-click the Application object you just created to display its properties.
- **3.** Select the Securi ty tab, in the Log On As section, and select This Account. The Add User window appears.
- 4. Select the Person you just created and click Add.
- 5. Click OK to close the Add User window.
- 6. Click OK to save the Application object.

Creating the List Import Format

In this step of the configuration process, you create a list import Format object. The list import Format object determines the structure of the calling list tables that CSS will create when importing SAP campaigns. Creating the list import Format object involves three processes:

- Creating Field Objects
- Creating the Format Object
- Copying the Format Object

The first step of the process is to create several Field objects that are mandatory for each list import Format.

Before you create the Field objects, however, make sure that the Annex tab will be displayed in the Configuration object Properties window:

- 1. In Configuration Manager, select Options from the View menu.
- 2. Select Show Annex tab in object properties.
- **3.** Click OK to close the window.

Creating Field Objects

To create a new Field object, in Configuration Manager:

1. Right-click the Fields folder. If you are working in a multi-tenant environment, this is located under Environment; if you are working in a single-tenant environment, this is located under Resources.

The New Field Properties window appears.

- 2. Select New > Field. The new Field window appears.
- **3.** On the General tab, for the Field you are creating, enter the Name field value from Table 2.

For example, to complete the first instance, enter crm_camp_con_id.

- 4. On the Annex tab, create a new section called default.
- 5. In the default section, create an option with the option name send_attribute and the option value from Table 3, which corresponds to the Field object you are creating.
- 6. Click 0K.

Table 2 contains properties you need to enter on the General tab for each Field object.

Table 2: Field Object Properties

Field Name	Data Type	Description	Length	Field Type	Primary Key	Nullable
crm_camp_con_id	varchar	SAP PDCALL GUID	32	User- Defined Field	Selected	Cleared

Table 3 shows an example value for the send_attribute option, which you can use when creating Field objects.

Table 3: Values for the send_attribute Option

Field Name	<pre>send_attribute Option Value</pre>
crm_camp_con_id	SAP_CALL_I D

With this configuration all Outbound calls would have the following key:value pair:

SAP_CALL_ID:<value of corresponding crm_camp_con_id field>

Creating the Format Object

Now you are ready to create the Format object. Follow these steps, in Configuration Manager:

- 1. Right-click the Formats folder under Environment if you are working in a multi-tenant environment or under Resources if you are working in a single-tenant environment.
- 2. Select New > Copy of existing Format.
- **3.** In the Browse window, select the default format for Outbound Contact: Default_Outbound_70.
- **4.** Click OK. The Properties dialog box for the Format copy that you are about to create appears.
- 5. Enter the following values on the General tab:
 - Name: Gpl usCampSynch (this name should be the same as defined in the format option on Page 35)
 - Description: Default list import format for the G*plus* Adapter 7.5 for SAP Campaign Synchronization Component.
- **6.** Click 0K.
- 7. In Configuration Manager, in the object tree view, right-click the Format object you just created.
- 8. Select New > Shortcut to Field. The Browse window appears.
- 9. Select the Field objects you just created.
- **10.** Click OK.

Note: You can add other User-Defined Fields (as required for your business).

Copying the Format Object

If you work in a multi-tenant environment, create a copy of the list import Format object under each Tenant that you will use.

To make a copy of the Format object:

- 1. In Configuration Manager, under a tenant that is mapped to a SAP Organization or Division, right-click the Formats folder.
- 2. Select New > Copy of existing Format. The Browse window appears.
- 3. Select the Format object you just created.
- **4.** Click OK. The Properties dialog box appears for the Format copy that you are about to create.
- 5. Click 0K to copy the Format.





Chapter



Installing Campaign Synchronization Server

This chapter describes how to install and uninstall the Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS). It includes the following sections:

- Installing the CSS, page 41
- Uninstalling the CSS, page 43

Installing the CSS

Install the Adapter on the target computer by using an InstallShield program that takes you step-by-step through the installation process.

Running the Setup

To install the Adapter on the target machine:

1. Insert the G*plus* Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP installation CD into your CD-ROM drive.

The autorun feature is activated. After a few moments, an autorun Wel come window opens, as shown in Figure 3. If the window does not open, see "Starting the Installation Manually".



Figure 3: Autorun Welcome Window

- 2. To view the product's Readme file, click the Readme file link.
- 3. To exit the installation utility, click Exit Installation Utility.
- 4. To install the CSS, click Campaign Synchronization Server.
- 5. Proceed to "Installing the Adapter"

Starting the Installation Manually

If your CD-ROM drive is not configured to employ autorun for CDs, after inserting the *Gplus* Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP installation CD into your CD-ROM drive, install CSS on the target machine using the Setup program:

- 1. Locate the setup. exe file in the CD path \gpl us_components\campai gn_synchroni zati on_server\windows\ or find the setup file in your installation package.
- 2. Double-click setup. exe to run the InstallShield Wizard.
- 3. Proceed to "Installing the Adapter"

Installing the Adapter

After you have chosen to install the Adapter, InstallShield takes you through the installation process step-by-step.

1. After InstallShield prepares the Genesys Installation Wizard, the Wel come window appears.

- 2. Read the text, and click Next to proceed.
- **3.** The Connection Parameters to the Genesys Configuration Server dialog box appears. Enter the required information, and click Next to continue.
- 4. The Select Application dialog box appears. It contains a list of Application objects from the Configuration Server database which have a template of type Genesys Generic Server and Server Info corresponding to the host on which the installation is running. Select the application you just created, and click Next to continue.
- **5.** The Choose Destination Location dialog box appears. Keep or change the default destination and click Next to continue.
- 6. The Ready to Install dialog box opens. Click Install to begin copying files.
- 7. Wait for Setup to finish copying files.
- **8.** When the Installation Complete window appears, click Finish to complete the installation.

By default, CSS is installed as a Genesys service (Windows Services) with an Automatic startup type.

Note: If you plan to run CSS as a Windows NT Service, you should become familiar with the common recommendations about deploying Genesys components as Windows NT Services. These recommendations are available in the *Genesys Framework 7.5 Deployment Guide*.

Installation Results

After the Setup has successfully completed, you will see:

- A Genesys Campaign Synchronization Server entry has been added to the Windows Services list.
- The Adapter Application object Start Info tab parameters are populated.

Uninstalling the CSS

Uninstall CSS using the Microsoft Windows Add/Remove Programs feature.

- **Note:** Stop the Adapter before it is uninstalled.
- **Note:** The uninstall procedure varies, depending on the version of the Windows operating system that you are running. Keep this in mind as you complete the following procedure.

To completely uninstall CSS:

- 1. From the Windows main taskbar, select Start > Settings > Control Panel > Add/Remove Programs.
- 2. Select Genesys Campai gn Synchroni zation Server 7.5. xxx. xx (where xxx.xx is the exact version that you have installed) as the component to remove.
- **3.** Follow the instructions on screen, and confirm that you want to remove CSS.
- **4.** After you see the message that says that the uninstall has been completed, follow the instructions on screen to conclude the uninstall process.
- **Note:** If the CSS folder contains files that were not initially installed, these files will not be deleted by the uninstall process. You must remove these files manually.



Chapter



Configuring the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP

This chapter describes how to configure the Autodialing Gateway Server (AGS) for SAP. It includes the following sections:

- Preliminary Procedures, page 45
- Importing the Application Template, page 45
- Creating and Configuring the Application, page 46
- Configuring and Creating the AGS Internal Table, page 55
- Configuring the SAPphone Server in SAP, page 56

Preliminary Procedures

Before you configure AGS, you must configure the Genesys Framework applications. The required Genesys Framework applications are:

- Configuration Database
- Configuration Server
- Configuration Manager

Importing the Application Template

Before you install AGS, you must import the Application Template into Genesys Configuration Manager, and also create and configure an Application object based on this template.

Note: As a Configuration Manager user, you should have sufficient privileges to make changes to Configuration Layer objects.

To import the AGS Application Template:

- 1. Open Configuration Manager, log in, then select Environment > Application Templates.
- 2. Right-click Application Templates.
- **3.** From the shortcut menu that appears, select Import Application Template.
- 4. In the Open dialog box, navigate to the file for the AGS Application Template. Its location on your hard drive or installation CD may vary. The file name is Autodi al i ng_Gateway_Server_750. apd.
- 5. Select this file and click Open. The Properties dialog box for the Appl i cation Templ ate object appears.
- **6.** (Optional) Edit the Application Template name.
- 7. In the Properties dialog box, click OK.

The Application Template object has been imported to Genesys Configuration Layer. Next, you will create the Configuration Layer Application object for the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP.

Creating and Configuring the Application

After you have imported the template as described in the previous section, create and configure the new AGS Application object. This involves the following tasks:

- 1. Creating the Application object
- 2. Configuring the General tab
- 3. Configuring the Server Info tab
- 4. Configuring the Start Info tab
- 5. Configuring the Connections tab
- 6. Configuring the Options tab
- 7. Completing initial setup of the Application object

Creating the Application Object

To create the properties for the new Application object, use Configuration Manager's Properties dialog box.

- 1. In Configuration Manager, select Environment > Applications.
- 2. Right-click either the Appl i cations folder or the subfolder where you want to create your application.
- 3. From the popup menu that appears, select New > Appl i cation.

4. In the Open dialog box, locate the template you just imported, then doubleclick it.

Configuration Manager opens the Properties dialog box for the new Application object as shown in Figure 4.

×	nants	Option: Ser	ver Info	1	Start Info
D ame: A					
<u>N</u> ame: A					
	Autodialing	Gatev	vay_Serve	er_750_	06 💌
					40.
T <u>e</u> mplate:	🖹 Autoo	dialing_(jateway_	Serv 🔻	1 🖂
_					
Type: T	Genesys G	ienenc	Server		
⊻ersion: [i	7.5.0				-
F	🛛 Is Appli	ication 9	erver		
I.	State E	.nabled			
а ок	Cancel	1	M <u>a</u> ke Ne		Help

Figure 4: Configuration Manager's Properties Dialog Box

Configuring the General Tab

To configure general information about the application, use the General tab of the Properties dialog box.

- 1. Click the General tab of the Properties dialog box.
- 2. (Optional) In the Name box, enter a name for the Application object. Figure 5 shows the contents of the General tab with the application name changed to AGS_for_SAP.

Connections	_ 1	Option			inex
General	Tenants	Se	erver Info	St	art Info
Þ					
<u>N</u> am	e: AGS_fo	r_SAP			-
T <u>e</u> mplat	e: 📴 Au	utodialing	_Gateway_	Serv 👻	اھ
Тур	e: Genesy	is Generic	Server		Ŧ
Versio	n: 7.5.0				-
	3				
	I s A	oplication	Server		
	<mark>⊡</mark> <u>S</u> tat	e Enableo	ł		

Figure 5: Configuration Manager's General Tab

Configuring the Server Info Tab

To configure the server information for the application, use the Server Info tab of the Properties dialog box.

- 1. Click the Server Info tab.
- 2. Select the Host that this instance of AGS is to run on and click OK.
- 3. Set the Communication Port field to any unused port (on this host).

An example of Server Info tab settings is shown in Figure 6.

Ports ID Listenin Secured Conn H Gefault 7006 Add Port Edit Port Delete Certificate View Host C Application	nex art Info
Add Port Edjt Port Delete Add Port Edjt Port Delete Certificate View Application Backup Server: Redundancy Type: Not Specified Image: Server: Image: Server:<td>é</td>	é
Add Port Edit Port Delete Certificate View • Application • Application • Host • Application • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	l
Certificate View	
Host Application Backup Server: Backup Server: Not Specified	Port
Host Application Backup Server: Backup Server: Not Specified	
Redundancy Type: Not Specified	
Redundancy Type: Not Specified	
Redundancy Type: Not Specified	
	S
Beconnect Timeout: 10	Â
	2
Reconnect Attempts: 1	ð

Figure 6: Configuration Manager's Server Info Tab

Configuring the Start Info Tab

To configure the startup information for the application, use the Start Info tab of the Properties dialog box.

- 1. Click the Start Info tab.
- **2.** In the Working Directory field, enter a period (.) to allow Setup to populate this field during installation.
- **3.** In the Command Li ne field, enter a period (.) to allow Setup to populate this field during installation.
- **4.** Do not enter a value in the Command Li ne Argument field. The installation program will provide the correct data for this field.

An example of Start Info tab settings is shown in Figure 7.

ew Autodiali	ng_Gatewa	y_Server	_750	_06 [gp	lus-auror
Connectior	ns	Option	IS	1	Annex
General	Tenants	Se	rver Inf	0	Start Info
	aur.				
Monting Directo	ч у .				-
•					
Command Line:					
					<u> </u>
Command <u>L</u> ine /	Arguments:				17
					-
- Timeout					
, mood	<u>S</u> tartup:	90			
	Transfer	1			
	S <u>h</u> utdown:	90			
	S <u>n</u> utuown.	1.00			<u></u>
					25
			Restarl	2	
		TAuto-	<u>H</u> estan		
		🔽 Erima	ry		
ОК	Can	icel	M <u>a</u> ke	New	Help

Figure 7: Configuration Manager's Start Info Tab

Configuring the Connections Tab

On the Connections tab, add the applications to which this application connects.

- 1. Click the Connections tab.
- 2. Click Add to add a connection to the following Genesys servers:
 - Message Server (optional, for logging messages to the network)
 - Configuration Server (optional)
 - Database access point (to allow access to the DB storage for internal AGS needs)
 - Campaign Synchronization Server
- **3.** Adjust the Advanced Disconnect Detection Protocol (ADDP) between AGS and Genesys servers components (optional).

Configuring the Options Tab

This section describes the configuration options for AGS. You must configure all of the following sections before starting the Adapter:

- log
- rfc-server
- General
- CampSync

To set various configuration options for the application, use the Options tab of the Properties dialog box. You will configure options in these sections starting with the log section. Double-click a section to access its options.

Table 4 lists and describes the options on the Options tab. These options are grouped according to the section of the tab in which they appear. A *Yes* in the "Must Restart?" column indicates that you must restart the Adapter after changing the option. A *Yes* in the "Must Set?" column indicates an option that you *must* configure in order for the Adapter to function properly. You can accept the default values for all other configuration options or adjust them later, according to your needs.

Note: All option names and values are case sensitive, so be sure that you use the correct case as shown in Table 4.

Table 4:	AGS	Configuration	Options
----------	-----	---------------	---------

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?				
log Section								
This section supports the unified set of log options (common log options) to enable precise configuration of the log file output. For a complete list of unified log options and their descriptions, see the "Common Log Options" chapter of the <i>Framework 7 Configuration Options Reference Manual</i> . If you do not specify any log options, the default values apply.								
rfc-server Section								
Contains options affecting	Contains options affecting the RFC server. The SAP system administrator should provide all SAP-related settings.							
gateway-host	Default Value: None Valid Values: <valid host<br="">name></valid>	Host name or host string of the SAP Gateway. For example: /H/192. 168. 3. 215/H/204. 7 9. 180. 5/S/3298/H/cpce601	No	Yes				
gateway-service	Default Value: None Valid Values: <val d<br="" i="">servi ce></val>	Service of the SAP gateway (For example: sapgw13)	No	Yes				

Table 4: AGS Configuration Options (Continued)
--

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?
program-id	Default Value: None Valid Values: <program id="" in<br="">RFC destination that is used in SAPphone server></program>	Program ID of the AGS (RFC destination)	No	Yes
listen-timeout	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <1 through 120>	Timeout value (in seconds)	No	Yes
recv-thread	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <1 through 512>	The minimum number of threads that are awaiting incoming requests. If the number of threads becomes less than specified because some thread is busy handling requests, AGS will create additional threads.	No	Yes
send-thread	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <currently undefined></currently 	Reserved for future use.	No	Yes
reconnect-timeout	Default Value: 4 Valid Values: <any positive<br="">integer></any>	Defines (in seconds) how long AGS waits before trying to connect to the SAP gateway if the connection was broken.	No	Yes
connecti on-pool	Default Value: 1 Valid Values: <1 through 128>	The maximum number of open (but not necessarily listening) connections.	No	Yes
	General S Specifies the ger			
TIMEZONE	Default Value: GMT Valid Values: Time zone name in Genesys CME.	Time zone is transferred to the CSS if it is not provided by SAP.	No	Yes

Table 4: AGS Configuration Options (Continued)

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?
STARTTIMEEX	Default Value: 080000 Valid Values: HHMMSS or -1	The value of the dai l y_from field is transferred to the CSS.	No	Yes
		HH is the digit value between 00 and 23 inclusively.		
		MM is the digit value between 00 and 59 inclusively.		
		SS is the digit value between 00 and 59 inclusively.		
		If this option is set to -1, the Adapter will transfer the value provided by SAP. Any non-valid value will be treated as -1.		
ENDTIMEEX	Default Value: 180000 Valid Values: HHMMSS or -1	The value for the dai l y_to field is transferred to the CSS.	No	Yes
		HH is the digit value between 00 and 23 inclusively.		
		MM is the digit value between 00 and 59 inclusively.		
		SS is the digit value between 00 and 59 inclusively.		
		If this option is set to -1, the Adapter will transfer the value provided by SAP. Any non-valid value will be treated as -1.		
DB_Tabl e	Default Value: AGS_INTERNAL_TABLE Valid Values: valid table name	The table name, which is located in the DataBase specified in the Database Access Point under the Connection tab of AGS. This table is where AGS saves the internal data (see "Configuring and Creating the AGS Internal Table" on page 55).	No	Yes

Table 4:	AGS	Configuration	Options	(Continued)
----------	-----	---------------	---------	-------------

Option Name	Values	Description	Must Restart?	Must Set?
Agent_name_subst	Default Value: NAME_CUT_BY_OCS Valid Values: valid for SAP agent name	The agent name is transferred to SAP when the Genesys agent name is too long. The current SAPphone limit is 15 characters.	No	Yes
	CampSync	Section		
	Specifies the CSS	specific options		
Organi zati on	Default Value: Valid Values: <the name="" of<br="">the existing Tenant></the>	The name of the Tenant where AGS is running. Under this Tenant, CSS creates the Calling List and Table Access objects.	No	Yes
Admin	Default Value: Valid Values: <any character<br="">string></any>	The name of the Super administrator in CSS.	No	Yes
Connecti onTi meout	Default Value: 60000 Valid Values: <any positive<br="">integer></any>	The timeout, in milliseconds, for requests to be sent to CSS.	No	Yes
	(Optional) HW_I	DISP Section		
	rerrides the default mapping of Ge	•	-	
Note: 7	This section is not provided in the	template. It must be added man	ually.	
<customoptionname> Where, <customoptionname> is the Genesys call result integer value. For more information, see the Genesys Outbound Contact 7.5 Reference Manual.</customoptionname></customoptionname>	Default Value: None Valid Values: <customopti onval="" ue=""> Where, the <customopti onval="" ue=""> is the value of the HW_DI SP (string). For more information, see the SAPphone documentation.</customopti></customopti>	This option specifies custom mapping between the Genesys Call Result value and the SAP HW_DISP key. Create one option for each Genesys Call Result value that requires a custom SAP HW_DISP key. For example: If <customopti onname="">= 28 and <customopti onval="" ue="">= BUSY, then records with a CallResult = 28 will be sent to SAP as HW_DI SP= BUSY.</customopti></customopti>	No	No This option is optional. If it is not defined, then the hard- coded mapping will be used.

Completing the Initial Application Setup

Once the values in the previous subsections have been entered, click 0K to complete the application setup.

Note: Also see "Configuring the SAPphone Server in SAP" on page 56 for options that you must configure for the AGS to function properly.

Configuring and Creating the AGS Internal Table

A Database Access Point for the AGS Internal Table must be added to the AGS connections. The AGS Internal Table name is configured in the DB_Table option in the General section (see "DB_Table" on page 53). AGS installation provides the SQL scripts for supported databases that should be executed manually after you install and before the you uninstall, if required to manage the AGS Internal Table. See "Configuring the Database". The AGS SQL scripts come with the AGS Internal Table name set to AGS_INTERNAL_TABLE.

Note: Multiple AGS instances should use different AGS Internal Tables.

Configuring the Database

You must configure the appropriate database management system (DBMS) to run the Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP. The application and other names used in the following procedure are examples. You can use these names or create others to suit your business needs.

To configure the DBMS:

- 1. Create a new database (genesys_adapter_sap_outbound, for example) in the DBMS.
- Run the appropriate script for your database. You will find the script in the Genesys directory you created during the setup process, for example, <DISK>: \GCTI\Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP\scripts. For information about executing an SQL script, see your database documentation.

The database is now configured.

Note: If you want to use a different name for the AGS internal table, you should edit the corresponding SQL script and specify the new name in the DB_Tabl e option.

Uninstalling the AGS Internal Table

Before uninstalling the AGS, you should remove the AGS internal table. To remove the AGS internal table run the appropriate uninstall script for your database. For information about executing an SQL script, see your database documentation.

Note: If you have used your own name in step 2, you should edit the corresponding SQL script ags_uninstall_mssgl.sql or ags_uninstall_ora.sql and specify the table name used in step 2 (see "Configuring the Database").

Configuring the SAPphone Server in SAP

The SAPphone Server must be configured. Follow the procedures outlined in the following section.

Component Enabling Examples

This section describes the two tasks you must complete on the SAP side to enable the AGS component:

- 1 "Configure the RFC Connection (Transaction SM59)" on page 56.
- 2 "Configure CTI Server in SAPphone (Transaction SPHB)" on page 57.

Configure the RFC Connection (Transaction SM59)

To configure the RFC Connection you must create a new RFC destination.

Creating a New RFC Destination

To create a new RFC Destination (see Figure 8):

1 Specify a name for the RFC destination.

Note: SAPphone refers to this name, as described in "Configure CTI Server in SAPphone (Transaction SPHB)" on page 57.

- 2. Set Connection Type (Figure 8) to T.
- **3** Register an RFC Server Program at a SAP gateway, or connect to an already registered RFC Server Program.
- 4 (Optional) Enter a Description (see Figure 8).

C Destinat	a A B C C C D D B 2 Y A A A D D C C A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
est connection	/nicode Test	
RFC destination	GENESYS_SAP_ADAPTER_AV	
Vescription		
SAP Phone Server	r created for Genesys CSS 75	
1		
Technical settin	rgs Logon/Security Special Options	
Start on Applic		
Registered Serve		
Program ID	genesys-adapter-ay	
Gateway Options		
Gateway host	g4cmain.wdf.sap.corp Delete	
	sapgw02	

Figure 8: RFC Connection Configuration

5. Click the Test connection button, located at the top-left corner in Figure 8, to check connectivity through the configured RFC connection.

Note: The AGS component on the Genesys side must be running.

Configure CTI Server in SAPphone (Transaction SPHB)

You must configure SAPphone because this interface is used to pass data back and forth between Genesys and SAP CRM.

The RFC Destination for SAPphone must match the entry defined for the RFC connection (see "Configure the RFC Connection (Transaction SM59)" on page 56).

Create a New SAPphone Server

To create a SAPphone server (see Figure 9):

- **1.** Specify a Server name.
- 2. Enter a Description.
- 3. Enter the RFC destination that connects to the AGS component.

Note: You may define the RFC settings. Click the RFC maint. button

- 4. Select Server in use.
- 5. Under the Functions column, select Dialer.

b Bangatore 080 San b Bangatore 2000 San b Bangatore 2000 San b Bangatore 2000 Date b Bangatore 2000 Date b Hotersbud 046 Date c Hotersbud 046 Date d Hotersbud 046 Date d Hotersbud 046 Date d Hotersbud 046 Date d H	Server attilt. Lang-dependent descriptions
	ver Ar_oth Ste Koev
C 02 DA DA BORDALINAL	Server in use Server is to be monitored by alert monitor
OCS Server for OLEO SERIETY OENEDYS_KIEV Server for BW inte DITEST TEST DIXAMAX spannas DIE Extension numbers: Maintenance authorization DIE Company Server Ser	email software / Functions / Telephony /
Comparison of the constraint of the constra	

Figure 9: Creating a SAPphone Server

6. After you enter all the data, click Connection test to display the valid version, as shown in Figure 10.

Version of server software	5.11AG75
Version of SAPphone interface	5.11ASP

Figure 10: Connection Test Results





Chapter

7

Installing Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP

This chapter describes how to install the Autodialing Gateway Server (AGS) for SAP. It includes the following sections:

- Installing the AGS, page 61
- Uninstalling the AGS, page 63

Installing the AGS

Install the Adapter on the target computer by using an InstallShield program that takes you step-by-step through the installation process.

Running the Setup

To install the Adapter on the target machine:

1. Insert the G*plus* Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP installation CD into your CD-ROM drive.

The autorun feature is activated. After a few moments, an autorun Wel come window opens, as shown in Figure 11. If the window does not open, see "Starting the Installation Manually".



Figure 11: Autorun Welcome Window

- 2. To view the product's Readme file, click the Readme file link.
- 3. To exit the installation utility, click Exit Installation Utility.
- 4. To install AGS, click Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP.
- 5. Proceed to "Installing the Adapter"

Starting the Installation Manually

If your CD-ROM drive is not configured to employ autorun for CDs, after inserting the *Gplus* Adapter 7.5 Campaign Synchronization for SAP installation CD into your CD-ROM drive, install the AGS on the target machine using the Setup program:

- 1. Locate the setup. exe file in the CD path \gplus_components\autodi aling_gateway_server\windows\ or find the setup file in your installation package.
- 2. Double-click setup. exe to run the InstallShield Wizard.
- 3. Proceed to "Installing the Adapter"

Installing the Adapter

After you have chosen to install the Adapter, InstallShield takes you through the installation process step-by-step.

1. After InstallShield prepares the Genesys Installation Wizard, the Wel come window appears.

- 2. Read the text, and click Next to continue.
- **3.** The Connection Parameters to the Genesys Configuration Server dialog box appears. Enter required information, and click Next to continue.
- 4. The Select Application dialog box appears. It contains a list of Application objects from the Configuration Server database which have a template of type Genesys Generic Server and Server Info corresponding to the host on which the installation is running. Select the application, and click Next to continue.
- **5.** The Choose Destination Location dialog box appears. Keep or change the default destination and click Next to continue.
- 6. The Ready to Install dialog box appears. Click Install to begin copying files.
- 7. Wait for Setup to finish copying files.
- **8.** When the Installation Complete window appears, click Finish to complete the installation.

By default, AGS is installed as a Genesys service (Windows Services) with an Automatic startup type.

Note: If you plan to run the AGS as a Windows NT Service, you should become familiar with the common recommendations about deploying Genesys components as Windows NT Services. These recommendations are available in the *Genesys Framework 7.5 Deployment Guide*.

Installation Results

After the Setup has successfully completed, you will see:

- A Genesys Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP entry is added to the Windows Services list.
- The Adapter Application object Start Info tab parameters are populated.

Uninstalling the AGS

Uninstall the AGS using the Microsoft Windows Add/Remove Programs feature.

- **Note:** Stop the Adapter before it is uninstalled.
- **Note:** The uninstall procedure varies, depending on the version of the Windows operating system that you are running. Keep this in mind as you complete the following procedure.

To completely uninstall the Adapter components:

- 1. From the Windows main taskbar, select Start > Settings > Control Panel > Add/Remove Programs.
- 2. Select Genesys Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP 7.5.xxx.xx (where xxx.xx is the exact version that you have installed) as the component to remove.
- **3.** Follow the instructions on screen, and confirm that you want to remove the AGS.
- **4.** After you see the message that says that the uninstall has been completed, follow the instructions on screen to conclude the uninstall.
- **Note:** If the AGS folder contains files that were not initially installed, these files will not be deleted by the uninstall process. You must remove these files manually.



Chapter

8

Starting the Adapter Components

This chapter describes how to start the G*plus* Adapter Campaign Synchronization for SAP. It includes the following sections:

- Launching the Adapter Components from the Start Menu, page 66
- Starting the Adapter Components Using the Solution Control Interface, page 67
- Starting the Adapter Components as a Windows Service, page 68

You can start both Adapter components, Autodialing Gateway Server (AGS) and Campaign Synchronization Server (CSS), in one of the following ways:

- Using a shortcut from the Start Menu
- Using an executable file from Windows Explorer (with Command Line Arguments)
- Using the Application object configured in Configuration Manager from the Solution Control Interface
- Using the Windows Service object found in the Windows Services console.
- **Note:** Before you start the Adapter components, make sure that all Genesys components (Configuration Server, Database Server, and so on) required by the Adapter components are properly configured and running.

Launching the Adapter Components from the Start Menu

Both Adapter components (CSS and AGS) can be started from the Windows Start menu.

Starting CSS

To launch CSS from the Start menu in Windows:

• Select Start > Programs > Genesys Solutions > Campaign Synchronization Server [<application>] and select Start CSS.

When the CSS component starts, the CSS console window appears with log information (initialization steps, and so on) as shown in Figure 12. The specific information displayed will vary.

and the second				paign Synchronization Component, ver. 7.5.000.02
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'buffering' has been set to the value 'yes' Option 'spool' has been set to the value ''
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'spool' has been set to the value ''
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'keep-startup-file' has been set to the value 'no'
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'MessageFile' has been set to the value 'GplusCamp
ynch.lms				
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'time-format' has been set to the value 'time'
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'time-convert' has been set to the value 'UTC'
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'message-format' has been set to the value 'short'
9.19.99	השה	Two	04110	Option 'memory-storage-size' has been set to the value '2
2.13.22. Mb'	207	IFC	04110	Option memory-storage-size has been set to the value 2
	007	T	04110	Option 'compatible-output-priority' has been set to the w
lue 'fal		IFC	04110	Option compatible-output-priority has been set to the c
		Two	04110	Option 'print-attributes' has been set to the value 'true
4-13-24.	207	IFC	04110	operating print accrimites has been set to the value true
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04110	Option 'check-point' has been set to the value '1'
2:13:22.	207	Std	04106	Log Messages file 'GplusCampSynch.lms' successfully loade
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04113	The Log Output of type 'stderr' has been closed and delet
d				
2:13:22.	207	Trc	04112	The Log Output of type 'stdout' has been created and oper
d				
2:13:22.	222	Trc	04500	Connecting to Message server '' at host 'gplus-aurora', p
rt 5050				
2:13:22.	222	Trc	04112	The Log Output of type 'network' has been created and ope
ed				
2:13:22.	222	Trc	04112	The Log Output of type 'CSS' has been created and opened
2:13:22.	222	Std	06053	Configuration for application obtained
2:13:22.	222	Tre	20020	Connecting to LCA on port 4999
pen LCAL				
CA Libra				
				Connected to LCA, handle 656
2:13:22	222	Std	40150	Run mode set to 'PRIMARY'
				Program locale set to 'Ukrainian_Ukraine.1251'
2:13:22	222	Tro	20060	[1660] Queuing application suite request for handling
2:13:22	222	Tre	20080	Initializing XML subsystem
2:13:22	316	Std	05061	Initialization completed
				[1660] Opening server port 5434
				[1660] Server port opened 5434, socket 632
				t 10001 Server port opened 3434, Socket 032
				ered on LCA

2:13:22.	316	Std	04503	Connected to Message server '' at host 'gplus-aurora', po
t 5050				and the second sec
	332	Tro	20070	[1660] Application suite request unqueued for handling
2:13:22	347	Tro	20050	Handling application suite request
2:13:22	363	Tre	20030	Application suite request handled
	000	110		apprivation sales request nanatou

Figure 12: The Adapter's CSS Component Started Successfully

Starting AGS

To launch AGS from the Start menu in Windows:

• Select Start > Programs > Genesys Solutions >Autodialing Gateway server for SAP [<application>] and select Start AGS.

When the AGS component starts, the AGS console window appears with log information (initialization steps, SAP requests, error info, and so on) as shown in Figure 12. The specific information displayed will vary.

Autodialing Gateway Server for SAP v. 7.5.000.06: Application AGS_750_06_AY
12:15:34.111 Trc 06084 Configuration option set: 'General':'ENDTIMEEX' = '180040
12:15:34.111 Trc 06084 Configuration option set: 'General':'TIMEZONE' = 'GMT' 12:15:34.111 Trc 06084 Configuration option set: 'CampSync':'Organization' = 'En g'ronment'
12:15:34.111 Trc 06084 Configuration option set: 'CampSync':'Admin' = 'CSS_Admin User'
Dpen LCALayer´on port=4999 LCA Library version 7.5.000.03 L2:15:34.111 Trc 30002 Change run mode<0> reg
CALaver: REventRegistered on LCA
l2:15:34.127 Trc 06050 Configuration object added: object type 'CfgApplication' bject name 'Message_Server'
2:15:34.127 Trc 06050 Configuration object added: object type 'CfgHost' object ame 'gplus-aurora'
2:15:34.127 Trc 06050 Configuration object added: object type 'CfgApplication' bject name 'DAP_AGS_Oracle10_Aurora'
2:15:34.127 Trc 06050 Configuration object added: object type 'CfgApplication' bject name 'CSS_750_02_AY'
2:15:34.127 Trc 06050 Configuration object added: object type 'CfgApplication' bject name 'Message_Server_backup'
2:15:34.424 Trc 06050 Configuration object added: object type 'CfgApplication' bject name 'DBServer_for_AGS'
2:15:34.424 Trc 04110 Option 'keep-startup-file' has been set to the value 'no'
2:15:34.424 Trc 04110 Option 'MessageFile' has been set to the value 'sapocsada ter.lms'
2:15:34.424 Trc 04110 Option 'time-convert' has been set to the value 'UTC' 2:15:34.424 Trc 04110 Option 'print-attributes' has been set to the value 'true
2:15:34.439 Trc 04112 The Log Output of type 'stdout' has been created and open d
[WARNING!] Attempt to specify incorrect value [replaced_by_css_test_test] for o tion [Agent_name_subst]! Value [replaced_by_css] will be used! 2:15:34.455 Std 06053 Configuration for application obtained 2:15:34.455 Irc 30002 Change run mode(0) req
2:15:31.455 Irc 30046 RFC server started CONNECTION :=g/H/sapstal/H/194.117.106.130/S/3299/H/g4cmain.wdf.sap.corp -xsapg
CONNECTION - 97878a0sta1787174.117.108.130787323778744CHain.wur.sap.corp -xsapg 02 -agenesys-adapter-ay RECU-THREAD:2 SEND-THREAD:2
2:15:34.470 Std 05061 Initialization completed 2:15:34.470 Std 04503 Connected to Message server '' at host '192.168.83.139', ort 5050
2:15:36.158 Trc 30001 RfcAccept: average invocation time is 1704/1=1704 ms 2:15:36.158 Trc 30001 RfcAttachContext: average invocation time is 0/1=0 ms 2:15:36.158 Std 30044 Connected to SAP gateway /H/sapsta1/H/194.117.106.130/S/3 9/H/g4cmain.wdf.sap.corp:sapgw02
7777744Cmain.wat.sap.corp.sapgwoz

Figure 13: The Adapter's AGS Component Started Successfully

Starting the Adapter Components Using the Solution Control Interface

Both Adapter components (CSS and AGS) can be started from the Genesys Solution Control Interface.

Starting CSS

If you adjust integration with the Management Layer, you will also able to start the CSS and check log information remotely using the Solution Control Interface application.

To launch CSS from the Solution Control Interface:

- **1.** Make sure that the Local Control Agent is running on the host where the CSS is installed.
- **2.** Make sure that the Start Info tab of Adapter Application object in Configuration Manager has correct startup parameters specified.
- **3.** In the Solution Control Interface, in I tems Tree view, find the CSS Application object you created in previous steps.
- **4.** Start the CSS using the Start menu shortcut or the Start button on the toolbar.

Starting AGS

If you adjust integration with the Management Layer, you will also be able to start the AGS and check log information remotely using the Solution Control Interface application.

To launch AGS from the Solution Control Interface:

- **1.** Make sure that the Local Control Agent is running on the host where the AGS is installed.
- 2. Make sure that the Start Info tab of AGS Application object in Configuration Manager has correct startup parameters specified.
- **3.** In the Solution Control Interface, in I tems Tree view, find the AGS Application object you created in previous steps.
- **4.** Start the AGS using the Start menu shortcut or the Start button on the toolbar.

Starting the Adapter Components as a Windows Service

Both Adapter components (CSS and AGS) can be started from the Windows Services console.

Starting CSS

To launch CSS from the Windows Services console:

During installation on Windows, create an entry for the CSS component in the Windows Services list. By default this entry has Automatic startup type. Therefore, CSS is automatically started each time a computer on which it is installed is rebooted.

The CSS component may also be started manually using the Windows Services Console as follows:

- **1.** Open the Administrative Tools panel by double-clicking the Administrative Tools icon.
- 2. Open the Servi ces window by double-clicking the Servi ces icon.
- **3.** Start or stop CSS by right-clicking and selecting Start or Stop from the shortcut menu.
- **Note:** For debug purposes you can select the Allow service to interact with desktop checkbox on the Log On tab of the service's properties. This will open the CSS component's console window where you can see the real-time log messages generated by CSS.

Starting AGS

To launch AGS from the Windows Services console:

During installation on Windows create an entry for the AGS component in the Windows Services list. By default this entry has Automatic startup type. Therefore, the AGS is automatically started each time a computer on which it is installed is rebooted.

The AGS component may also be started manually using the Windows Services Console as follows:

- **1.** Open the Administrative Tools panel by double-clicking the Administrative Tools icon.
- 2. Open the Servi ces window by double-clicking the Servi ces icon.
- **3.** Start/stop AGS by right-clicking and selecting Start or Stop from the shortcut menu.
- **Note:** For debug purposes you can select the Allow service to interact with desktop checkbox on the Log On tab of the service's properties. This will open the AGS component's console window where you can see the real-time log messages generated by AGS.





Chapter



Use-Case Scenarios

This chapter provides specific use-case scenarios for using the Adapter. It includes the following sections:

- Testing the Adapter-SAPphone Connection, page 71
- Setting Up and Assigning the Call List, page 72
- Running Campaign Record Deletion, page 78

Testing the Adapter-SAPphone Connection

After you have started the Adapter components (CSS and AGS), Genesys recommends that you perform a connection test. In this way you will be able to check the connection and compatibility between the Adapter components and SAP, *and* the Adapter will receive some information about your SAPphone server settings.

To perform a connection test:

• Go to transaction SPHB in your SAP system, select your site and telephony server, and click Connection test. In the dialog box that appears you should see the SAPphone version implemented in the Adapter and supported by your SAP system as shown in Figure 14.

	Version of server software	5.11AG75
	Version of SAPphone interface	5.11ASP
9	The server program is compatible	

Figure 14: Connection Test Has Passed

Setting Up and Assigning the Call List

Note: The following scenario is only an example. The behavior may vary in different SAP systems.

To set up a Call List:

- **1.** Log in to SAP CRM.
- 2. From the SAP CRM menu, select [Interaction Center > Supporting Processes >] Call Lists > Call List Maintenance.

Note: The exact path depends on the version of SAP CRM you are using.

3. Select the Call List that is to be transferred to Genesys.

You must also assign the Call List to at least one resource. For example, the Call List shown in Figure 15 on page 73 is assigned to an agent.
Choit Ell, Gets Ves. Toxis, System Help						SAP
0 00000	10000 00000					
and the second se	nesysAY		_			
the second se	in system					
X Y X D O D & B						
Favorites	Osmarial Executo	on Control Execution Pr	ignes [lescheduling		
00Seath		and the second			3+42 Dev. 5 (1.17)	
(Calin	Start on 2	6.01.2007 00:00:00 Sto	p.on	29.01.200	7.00100100	
▲Name	Priority 2	2 Ctr	mplete by	1	@:00:00	
b QQ Dummy Call List b QQ EH 2004 03:05 - 1 CALL LIST 05:03 2004 12:03:20	Execution mode: A	utomated B				
D GO FOTO TRADE FAIR - LEAD QUALIFICATION 13 07	Diater P	W_OUT Outbound_Adapter,	AY		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
D QJ Feel good in October	Order control					
0 0 Foto Trade Fair - LEAD June 03 - 01.08 2003 30.00	Córetol execution or	der				
D @ Foto Trade Fair - LEAD May 02 - 01.05 2003 31.05.	Fatbid resorting of a	alls by agents				
5- 10 Frankeka 1stl 5- 10 Fumi Takekuchi Call List	Type		1	810		
D Q OENEBYS OUTBOUND 21 07 04 - 23.07.04					6	
5 GORDON4 ALIAS 58 16072003 07/16/2003 07/36	Default Values for Calls	1				
D 20 OW DABER 17.06 2004 17.07 2004	Maximum attempts	1				
D One over Outbound Hev 23.07.04	Expected duration	00100100 Maunt	um duration	0010010	0	
Ogi OsnesysAr Ogi Assignments						
A IC WFM Agent						
6) Business Context						
G Call Lints						
	1 2 3					
C Alexander, Yukhymenko					14	
C Averander, Tukhemerko	AName		S. Mode	Tree	1	
C. Alexander, Yukhymenko	Assignments		a la serve	Tune		
9 🔁 UA, KNW	Dusineus Context					
₽ ☎ +3601300	QQ Call Link					
D 2 + 3001500 O Herated Calls	@ Calls					
Novedue Calls	Overtbue Calls		* 8	Cal		
Rescheduled Calls	Search for Calls		1	Cat		
() Search for Calls	O Unaccompliated Call	1	0 00	Cal		
O Unaccompliated Calls						
D Q OmensAT						
D dQ Ooldon4 bbb						
5 G HANNEMME 22.07.03-1 22.08.2003 22.07.2003						
P Q HARTMANNICHummann 13.02.2004 20.02.2004						
5 AD 101						
Hy Organizational Unit						
What Flood Call Lin						
Configuration						
						0 040 (1) (705) 🕙 94cmain 1845 🦯

Figure 15: Transferring a Call List from SAP to Genesys

To transfer a Call List from SAP to Genesys:

- 1. Set the Execution Mode to Automated. A line to select a dialer appears. All servers defined in the SAPphone that are configured as dialer are presented in the drop-down list.
- 2. Select the dialer defined to connect to Genesys using an RFC connection.
- **3.** Click Activate (the button labeled 1 in Figure 15) to activate the Call List. Clicking this button also activates the Deactivate (labeled 2 in Figure 15) and Synchronize (labeled 3 in Figure 15) buttons.

The corresponding objects are created in the Genesys Configuration database. See Figure 16.



Figure 16: Call List Objects in the Genesys Configuration Database

The corresponding Call List table is created in the Genesys database. You can find the name of this table using the Table Access object. See Figure 17.

📓 GenesysAY [gplus-a	ourora:4000] Properties 🛛 🛛 🗙
General Annex Secu	rity Dependency
Name:	GenesysAY 🗾
<u>I</u> enant:	🛦 Environment 🔄 💕
Table Type:	Calling List
D <u>e</u> scription:	
<u>D</u> B Access Point:	DAP_CSS_Oracle10_Auro 🗾 🔀
<u>F</u> ormat:	🔁 CSS75_Format 🔄 💕
Database Ta <u>b</u> le:	CLT_119
<u>U</u> pdate in	0 seconds 🗖 <u>C</u> acheable
	☑ <u>S</u> tate Enabled
СК	Cancel Make New Help

Figure 17: Genesys Database Table

The content of the Call List is transferred over to the Genesys database. See Figure 18.

	golus-aurora - Remote Deskt	0p						
Configurations Server (N) Cubund Codest Server (N) Cubund Cod	Cluthered Contact Havager,	Server galus-auror	s on port Tid.7			LOX		
Configurations Server CN: Outdoord Context Server CN: Outdoord Context Server CN:	Be yes, Table Bells	10-200 - 20				100 C 100		
Cardenause Carden	b or □ < <							
Control 2 Processes Control 2 Proceses Control 2 Processes Control 2 Processe Control 2 Processes Con	AnnasCampaigns	Caling list detail		dabase name n/a				
Configuration Server ON Outboard Context Server ON	AnnashG G CS5, ApintGroup Caling Lists Alexy Caling List Annas, Caling List	2 +380 (1500)	Hone Phone General Ready 1 Hone Phone General Ready 1 Phone Phone General Ready 1	Depower Coll Result 0	8 00 00	18.00.40		10
Configuration Server CNL Outboard Contact Server CNL								
Configuration Server ON Outbound Contact Se								
Avanded Ava			AnnesCerpsign2	Calling list details view -	emat Database: Database na	men/a	GUIDs	
x] Records: 2: Records in filter: 1: Filter: Dating filter: Verwing filter: 		Records: 2 Record Pitters Dialing filter: Verwang filter: Update	AnnasAG G. Colleg Lists Alexi'r Calleg List Annas callat soo GenerysAT	app_id treatments media_ref	email_subject	154	50E828DC2172E1000000A114CBC	1
Dialing Riter:	Configuration Servier CN Outboor	nd Contact Servey ON		Records: 2 Records in filter: 2 (Dans: 1 Chars in filter: 1		L	-1
Configuration Server ON Outbound Contact Server ON				Dialog filter: Vewing filter:	12.02			-
			Configuration Server ON Outbour	nd Contact Server ON				-
			Ś					

Figure 18: Transferring the Call List to the Genesys DB

4. You can assign the Genesys Calling List to any available campaign and process it. See Figure 19.

Note: A SAP Campaign is equivalent to a Genesys Calling List.

W Outbound Contact Manager, S	Server gplu	s-aurora on p	ort 7667								_ [) ×
Elle Yiew Icols Help												
😓 🤿 🖽 🔁 🔂												
Environment	Genesys	AY										
E 🔆 Campaigns	Callera	list details view										
-> AnnasCampaign2												
CSS_Campaign_Gene Groups	Table: CLT_	119 Format: 0	CSS75_Format	Database: Dat	abase name n/	0						
- AnnasAG	record_id	contact_info	contact_info_ty		record_statu		attemp	dial_sched_tir		daily_from		tz_d
CSS_AgentGroup	1	+380 (1300)	Home Phone	General	Updated	Answer	1		11.12.2006 17:06:39	8:00:00		GMT
Caling Lists	2	+300 (1500)	Home Phone	General	Updated	Answer	2		11.12.2006 17:07:00	0:00:00	10:00:40	GMT
AlexY Caling List Armas_calist_666 GenesysAY GenesysAY3												
Annas_calist_666												
GenesysAY3												
	1											-
	Records: 2	Records in filt	er: 2 Chains: 1	Chains in fil	ter: 1							
	Filters											
	Dialing filte	Hr:	I	9								
	Viewing filt	er:	ſ									int.
4 1	Updat	e										
Configuration Server ON Outbour	d Contact Ser	iver ON										

Figure 19: Genesys Calling List Details View

 Press the Synchronization button (see button 3—Figure 15 on page 73). The statistical information is transferred from Genesys to SAP. See Figure 20.

0 000 8 000	0000 0000	TET CO MD					Contract of the local division of the local
Call List Maintenance: Change Ca	lis						
8 7 X D 0 0 0 0 0							
Favoles	0000000						
Search	▲Name	p art State	Duration	Attempts Completion	Call Time	Call Result	animum Tirr Lock ted
pcation .	Alexander, Yukhmenko	Completes		2 R	+1.13.3008 (0.07.00)	GUYCE&RD.	00:00:00 00:00:0
A Name J							
Image: Call List Image: Call List Image: Call Call Call List Iss 03 2004 12 83 20 Image: Call Call Call Call Call Call Call Cal							
Constructional Unit	4						
ONly Root Call List							

Figure 20: Genesys Call List Maintenance

6. After you are finished with the Call List, click Deactivate (labeled 2 in Figure 15) to disable the Call List.

Running Campaign Record Deletion

The Adapter enables running-campaign records to be deleted from a SAP Campaign even when the campaign is already running on the Genesys side. The following configuration is required for this functionality to work:

1. CSS must have a connection to the T-Server and the Outbound Contact Server. For more information, see "Configuring the Connections Tab" on page 31.

The following CSS options must be set in the CSS Application object's Genesys section:

- sendCancel Record equals true
- communicationDn equals the number of Communication DNs on the switch that is used to run the outbound campaign.

This functionality could be useful in the following use cases:

- 1. You have already transferred campaign data from SAP to Genesys
- **2.** The correspondent outbound campaign is active and running on the Genesys side.
- **3.** The record from the correspondent Genesys calling list is already being processed by OCS. For example, the agent requested this record.
- 4. The correspondent call is marked as Completed in the SAP Campaign.
- 5. There is a request to delete this record on the Genesys side.

In this case CSS:

- **1.** Submits a Cancel Record request to OCS through T-Server's communication DN.
- 2. Deletes the correspondent record from the Genesys Calling List tables.

This behavior corresponds to the Genesys OCS Cancel Record approach. For more information, see the *Outbound Contact 7.5 Reference Manual*.





Index

Α

adapter	
AGS	51
architecture	17
configuring, AGS	45
configuring, CSS	27
connections	17
CSS	31
functional capabilities	8
Genesys applications	20
hardware requirements	
high availability	
installing, AGS.	61
installing, CSS.	41
key features	16
migration.	
overview	
platforms supported	8
SAP requirements	21
SAP requirements	21
security	9
software requirements	45
starting	65
uninstalling, AGS	63
uninstalling, CSS	43
usability	8
use-case scenarios	71
additional resources	
Framework 7.5 Deployment Guide	12
Genesys 7 Migration Guide	12
Genesys 7.5 Security Deployment Guide	12
Genesys Technical Publications Glossary	
Genesys Technical Support website	12
Outbound Contact 7.5 Deployment Guide	12
Outbound Contact 7.5 Reference Manual.	12
product advisories	12
release notes	12
admin option (AGS)	54
administrator connectivity	15

agent_id option (CSS)	32
agent_id option (CSS)	54
AGS	
application object, creating	
automated dialing	17
component enabling examples	56
Configuration Layer	17
connections tab	
CSS, connection	17
DB Server, connection	
general tab	
importing, application template	
installing	63
internal table	55
librfc32.dll, SAP RFC	20
Management Layer	
options tab	
preliminary procedures	
SAP server, connection	
start info tab	49
template file	46
Application	
creating and configuring	46
application object, creating	
AGS	
CSS	28
application template (AGS), importing	45
application template (CSS), importing	27
application template, importing	
CSS	
application, creating and configuring	28
Autodialing Gateway Server (see AGS)	15
automatic dialing.	

В

brackets											
angle .	2						÷	2		÷	11
square.							÷				11

С

Call List	
assign to campaign	j.
disable	
set up	
synchronize	•
transfer	5
CallingListFolders section	
campaign	
deletion	
dynamic updating	
predictive	
progressive	
reporting.	
telemarketing	,
telesales	,
Campaign Synchronization Component	
Field object, creating	
Format object, creating	
Campaign Synchronization Server (see CSS) 15	
campaign_id option (CSS))
campsync section	
admin option	
connectiontimeout option	
organization option	
campsync section (AGS)	
organization option	
chapter summaries	
defining	
commenting on this document	6
commenting on this document	
configuration options	
admin	
agent_name_subst	
campsync section	
connection-pool	
connectiontimeout	
db_table	
endtimeex	
gateway-host	
gateway-service	
listen-timeout	
organization	
program-id	
reconnect-timeout	
recv-thread	
rfc-server section	
send-thread	
starttimeex	
timezone	
configuring, external organizations and	
administrators	
AGS	5
AGG	
AGS	

connectiontimeout option (AGS)
contact_info option (CSS)
CSS
adapter, architecture
AGS, connection
application object, creating
application template, importing
Configuration Layer
configuration options
configuring, security
connections tab
DB Server, connection
general tab
importing, application template
installing
Management Layer
OCS, connection
OCS, functionality
options tab
Person, adding super administrator 37
Person, associating with application 37
Person, creating new
preliminary procedures
security settings
server info tab
start info tab
template file
tenants tab
T-server, connection
uninstalling
CustomStatistics section
agent_id option
campaign_id option
contact_info option
record_status option

D

DatabaseAccessPoints section	ļ
db_table option (AGS)	3
deleting, campaign	3
document	
conventions)
errors, commenting on	3
version number)

Ε

endtimeex option (AGS)				.53
external organizations connectivity	4			.15

F

features (key)

Calling List creation
Calling Lists updates
campaign synchronization
Genesys Configuration Layer
Genesys Management Layer
offline campaign record deletion
online campaign record deletion
querying campaign result
Field object, creating
Campaign Synchronization Component 38
Format object, creating
Campaign Synchronization Component
format option (CSS)
Framework

G

gateway-host option (AGS)
gateway-host option (AGS)
general section
agent_name_subst option
db_table option
endtimeex option
starttimeex option
timezone option
timezone option
Genesys applications
Configuration Layer
Configuration Manager
Configuration Server
Framework 7.5
LCA
Management Layer
Message Server
Outbound Contact Solution
performance
performance
Genesvs Calling List, define
Genesys Calling List, define
Genesys section
CancelRecordTimeout option
communicationDN option
format option
sendCancelRecord option
Genesys section (CSS)
Genesys Technical Support
media interfaces
website
Gplus Adapter
software requirements 20
software requirements
Gplus Outbound Adapter for SAP
migration
previous version of
uninstalling

Н

hardware requirements	2		÷	÷	2	÷	÷		2	.21
hw_disp section (AGS)										

importing, application template (AGS) importing, application template (CSS) inbound interactions	.27
AGS	61
AGS, autorun	
AGS, results.	
AGS, setup.exe	
CSS	
CSS, autorun	
CSS, results.	
CSS, setup.exe	
InstallShield	. 62
intended audience	
interactions	
inbound	15
outbound	15
internal table	
configuring	55
configuring, database	55
creating	55
option (AGS), db_table	
scripts	
uninstalling	56

L

librfc32.dll
list import format
copying format objects
creating field objects
creating format objects
listen-timeout option (AGS)
log section (AGS)
Log section (CSS)

Μ

migration									
AGS, application	4			2					25
AGS, configuring									26
AGS, importing .									25
AGS, installing .									
CSS and AGS, st									
CSS, application									
CSS, configuring									
CSS, importing .									
CSS, installing .									26

deactivating SAP campaigns
deleting Calling List
deleting table access objects
framework, upgrading
Framework, upgrading to 7.5
Outbound Contact, upgrading
SAP Calling Lists, activating
multi-tenant environment

0

option (AGS)	
admin	. 54
agent_name_subst	
connection-pool	
connectiontimeout	
db_table	. 53
endtimeex	. 53
gateway-host	
gateway-service	. 51
listen-timeout	. 52
organization	
program-id.	. 52
reconnect-timeout	
recv-thread	. 52
send-thread	. 52
starttimeex	. 53
timezone	. 52
option (CSS)	
agent_id	. 32
campaign_id	. 33
CancelRecordTimeout	l, 35
communicationDN	. 34
contact_info	. 33
format	. 35
record_status	. 33
sendCancelRecord	. 35
order, CD.	
organization option (AGS)	
outbound interactions	15

Ρ

Person, adding super administrator	
CSS	37
Person, associating with application	
CSS	37
Person, creating new	
CSS	36
program-id option (AGS)	52

R

reconnect-timeout option (AGS) 52	eout option (AGS)
-----------------------------------	-------------------

record_status option (CSS)	
recv-thread option (AGS)	52
Relational Database Management System	
(RDBMS)	21
requirements	
hardware	21
SAP	
software	
requirements, software	
operating system	21
RFC Connection	
configuring	56
rfc-server section	
connection-pool option	52
gateway-host option	
gateway-service option	
listen-timeout option	
program-id option	
	52
recv-thread option.	
send-thread option	
rfc-server section (AGS)	51
	- · ·

S

SAP
AGS, librfc32.dll
SAP Gateway
SAP Note
1023194
413708 (librfc32.dll)
SAP requirements
SAP RFC functions
SPS_DELETE_PDCALL
SPS_PDLISTTRANSFER
SPS_STATCAMPAING
SAP systems
IC Call List Management Application 15
Interaction Center WebClient
Interaction Center WinClient
SPHB
SAPphone
configuring
configuring, server
creating a server
interface, version 5.11
version
section (AGS)
CampSync
campsync, admin option
campsync, connectiontimeout option 54
campsync, organization option 54
campsynch
General
general
general, agent_name_subst option 54

general, db_table option53general, endtimeex option53general, starttimeex option.53general, timezone option.52hw_disp.54
log
rfc-server
rfc-server, connection-pool option
rfc-server, gateway-nost option
rfc-server, listen-timeout option
rfc-server, program-id option
rfc-server, reconnect-timeout option
rfc-server, recv-thread option
rfc-server, send-thread option
section (CSS)
CallingListFolders
CustomStatistics
CustomStatistics, agent_id option
CustomStatistics, campaign_id option 33 CustomStatistics, contact_info option 33
CustomStatistics, record_status option
DatabaseAccessPoints
Genesys
Genesys, CancelRecordTimeout option. 34, 35
Genesys, communicationDN option
Genesys, format option
Genesys, sendCancelRecord option
Log
TableAccessFolders 31, 35
Tenants
security settings
CSS
sendCancelRecord option (CSS)
send-thread option (AGS)
Setup program
software requirements
start info
command line
starting
AGS, Solution Control Interface
AGS, Windows Service
AGS, Windows Start menu
CSS and AGS, command line
CSS, Solution Control Interface
CSS, Windows Service
CSS, Windows Start menu
dependencies
overview
starttimeex option (AGS)
supported hardware

Т

connections (AGS)	0
connections (CSS)	
general (AGS)	
general (CSS)	9
options (AGS)	
options (CSS)	1
server info (CSS)	
start info (AGS)	9
start info (CSS)	0
tenant (CSS)	
TableAccessFolders section	5
template file	
AGS	6
CSS	8
third-party software	2
timezone option (AGS)	
typographical styles	0

U

uninstalling															
AGS.	2												2	÷	63
CSS	2				2					2				÷	43
use-case scenarios		۰.										1	1		71
Call List, set up .	2	2			2					2				÷	72
Call List, transfer															
connection test .														÷	71
	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.,	÷.	

V

version numbering								
document					÷	÷	÷	10

W

working	directory	/.		2		2		2	2		.30

Index

